AFTER RECORDING, RETURN TO: William M. Ganong Attorney at Law 514 Walnut Avenue Klamath Falls OR 97601

# **2015-009782** Klamath County, Oregon



09/02/2015 11:29:10 AM

Fee: \$117.00

# **BYLAWS**

OF

# TIMBERMILL SHORES PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION an Oregon Nonprofit Corporation

# CONTENTS OF BYLAWS

<b>ByLav</b>	v Section	Title	Page No.
1.	IDENTIFICATION AND STATUS		2
	1.1 - 1.2	Name, Status	
2.	MEMBERS 2.1 - 2.8	Joint Membership, Voting, Meetings, Discipline	2-4
3.	BOARD OF DIRECTORS		4-8
<i>J</i> .	3.1 -3.6	Powers and Duties, Number, Qualification, Election and Removal, Meetings, Action Without Meeting	
4.	OFFICERS		8-9
	4.1 - 4.4	Election/Term, Qualifications, Removal/Resignation, Offices	
5.	ASSESSMENTS AN 5.1 - 5.9	Annual Assessment, Special Assessments, Statement, Payment, Late Charges/Costs, Suspensions, Lien/ Foreclosure, Disposition of Funds, Statement of Charges	10-12
6.	RECORDS AND RE 6.1 - 6.2	PORTS Inspections, Accountings and Reports, Audit	12-14
7.	INSURANCE 7.1 - 7.2	Generally, Policies, Individual Fire Insurance Limited	14-15
8.	GENERAL BYLAW 8.1 - 8.4	Principal Office, Approval Procedures, Liability of Agents, Indemnification, Distributions, Dissolution, Amendments	15-16
9.	CERTIFICATION		16

#### 1 IDENTIFICATION AND STATUS

- 1.1 Name. The name of this corporation is TimberMill Shores Property Owners Association, an Oregon nonprofit corporation ("Association").
- 1.2 <u>Status</u>. The Association is formed and shall be operated pursuant to the Declarations of TimberMill Shores recorded June 22, 2001, in Volume M01 at Page 29962 of the Deed Records of the Clerk of Klamath County, Oregon (the "Declarations").

## 2. MEMBERS

- 2.1 <u>Membership</u>. Membership in the Association is established by Section 4.7 of the Declarations. The owner of each parcel of property located in TimberMill Shores described in the Declarations shall be a member of the Association. Each separately owned parcel shall hold one membership in the Association. The rights, powers, and duties of members are more fully described in these Bylaws.
- 2.2 Joint Membership. When two (2) or more persons or entities jointly own a membership, they shall designate in writing a person to represent the membership in the Association. The written Designation of Representative shall be signed by each person or entity having an ownership interest in the parcel. The written Designation of Representative shall be filed with the secretary of the Association and shall remain in effect until a written revocation signed by one or more of the owners of the parcel is received by the secretary of the Association. The secretary, in her or his absolute discretion, may require an owner filing a Designation of Representative or revocation of the Designation of Representative to provide current proof of the ownership of the parcel. The designated representative shall be entitled to represent the membership in all Association business for which these Bylaws require membership participation or approval. All property owners may attend membership meetings, but no vote of such membership shall be cast unless a valid Designation of Representative acceptable to the secretary of the Association is on file with the secretary.
- 2.3 <u>Voting</u>. Each membership carries the power to vote in the Association. Each membership shall be entitled to one vote for each 2000 square feet of land in TimberMill Shores owned by the member. Except as otherwise provided by law, only members in whose names memberships entitled to vote stand on the records of the Association on the record date for voting purposes, as provided herein, and Declarant (except as otherwise specifically excluded), shall be entitled to vote at any meeting or by written ballot without a meeting.
- 2.4 <u>Membership Approval</u>. A requirement in these Bylaws or the Declarations for approval of the members means the affirmative vote or written assent of a majority of the votes represented at a meeting, or cast in an election by written ballot, where a quorum is represented or responds, respectively, unless a different number or portion is specifically prescribed.
- 2.5 <u>Proxies</u>. Every member entitled to vote or execute consents shall have the right to do so either in person or by a written proxy executed by the duly authorized representative and filed with the secretary of the Association; provided that no such proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11) months from the date of its execution unless the member executing it

specifies therein the length of time for which such proxy is to continue in force, which in no event shall exceed three (3) years from the date of its execution. Such proxy shall be valid as to the following matters only if the general nature of the matter is described in the proxy: removal of a director, filling a vacancy on the Board, approving transactions involving directors, amending proxy rights, amending the Articles, selling substantially all Association assets, mergers, dissolution, and distributions.

2.6 Quorum. The presence or participation in person, by written ballot, and/or proxy of the holders of 25 percent of the voting power shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The members present at a duly-called or held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be deemed to constitute a quorum until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough members to leave less than a quorum. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of voting power voting on an issue at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be deemed the act of the membership unless a greater number proportion is specifically required. If any meeting is adjourned for lack of a quorum, the quorum requirement at the adjourned meeting shall still be 25 percent of the voting power of the Association.

# 2.7 Meetings.

- 2.7(a) <u>Place</u>. Any meeting of the members shall be held in Klamath County, Oregon at such particular place as is determined by the Board.
- 2.7(b) <u>Annual Meeting</u>. The annual meeting of the members for the election of directors and for the transaction of such other business as may properly come before the members shall be held each year at 6:00 p.m. on a day in May, chosen by the Board.
- 2.7(c) <u>Transitional Meeting</u>. The Declarant shall call a meeting of the members to be held not later than 60 days after the last conveyance to persons other than the Declarant of a total of 75 percent of the land area of TimberMill Shores has been conveyed to third parties. At the transitional meeting, a transitional committee consisting of one member selected by Declarant and two members selected by members other than the Declarant shall be selected. The transitional committee shall be advisory only and shall serve until the turnover meeting. If the Declarant fails to call the transitional meeting within the time specified, the meeting may be called and notice given by any member. Notice of the transitional meeting shall be given not less than seven nor more than 50 days prior to the meeting.
- 2.7(d) <u>Turnover Meeting</u>. The Declarant shall call a turnover meeting within 90 days after the date of the last conveyance to persons other than the Declarant of a total of 50 percent of the said land area. If the turnover meeting is not called by the Declarant within the time specified, any member may call the meeting and give notice. Notice shall be given to each member not less than seven nor more than 50 days prior to the meeting.
- 2.7(e) <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the members for any lawful purpose and at any time shall be scheduled in response to a call by the President, by the Board, or upon receipt of a written request signed by 10 percent of the members. Such meetings must be duly noticed and held not less than 10 days nor more than 50 days after request therefor is received by the President or Secretary. If notice is not given by the secretary within 20 days of such receipt

by the Association of a request for a special meeting, then the person(s) requesting the meeting may give notice.

- 2.7(f) Notice. Except as otherwise provided above, written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given to each member who, on the date notice of the meeting is given, is entitled to vote there at, either by personal delivery or by mail charges prepaid, addressed to such member at the record address appearing on the books of the Association or given to the Association by the member for notice purposes. All such notices shall be sent to each member entitled thereto no less than 10 days and not more than 50 days before the subject meeting, and shall specify the place, the date, and the time of such meeting, shall also state the general nature of each item of business or proposal to be considered or acted upon at such meeting, and if directors are to be elected, shall include the names of all those in nomination at the time notice is given.
- 2.7(g) Consent to Absentees. Any defects in the call, notice, time or location of a meeting shall not affect the validity of transactions at the meeting which are otherwise valid, if a quorum is present, either in person or by proxy, and if each member entitled to vote, not present in person or by proxy, signs a written approval of the minutes. Such approvals shall be made a part of the minutes of the meeting. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as requiring the consent of absentees to transactions at a properly called, noticed, and held meeting at which a quorum is present.
- 2.7(h) Adjourned Meetings. Any members' meeting, annual or special, whether or not a quorum is present, may be adjourned from time to time by the vote of a majority of the voting power present in person or by proxy, but in the absence of a quorum no other business may be transacted at any such meeting. When (i) any members' meeting is adjourned for not less than five (5) days and not more than thirty (30) days, (ii) announcement of the time and place of the adjourned meeting is made prior to adjournment, and (iii) there is no change in the record date, then no additional notice need be given. Otherwise, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting.
- 2.8 <u>Discipline</u>. The Board may establish uniform fines and temporary suspensions that shall be imposed for violation of the Articles, Declarations, Bylaws, or Rules. Determination of responsibility, such as for maintenance or repairs of damage, or determination of what constitutes a nuisance, shall be only by the following procedures, or by a court or arbitration proceeding. Violations shall be determined and penalties imposed by the Association only after thirty (30) days' written notice to the offending member served personally or by mail, certified postage prepaid, return receipt requested, mailed to the latest address for such member shown on the Association records, specifying the possible action and the alleged reasons therefor, and an opportunity for the member to be heard before a quorum of the Board at least five (5) days before the effective date of any possible action. Provided, however, that no owner shall be deprived of the right to full use and enjoyment of its land and improvements, including access thereto, except (a) by the judgment of a court, or (b) on account of a sale under a power of sale for failure to pay duly levied annual or special assessments.

#### BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 3.1 <u>Powers and Duties</u>. Subject to the provisions of the Articles, the Declarations, these Bylaws, and the laws of Oregon, all corporate powers of the Association shall be exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of the Association shall be controlled by, the Board of Directors.
- 3.1(a) <u>Responsibilities</u>. Without prejudice to its general powers, but subject to the same limitations, the Board shall have the power and responsibility to perform the following duties:
- (i) To select all officers, agents, and employees of the Association and prescribe powers and duties for them;
- (ii) To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and business of the Association, including contracting for such insurance, goods, services, professional management, legal and accounting services as is required by the Declarations, Articles, or these Bylaws, provided that any management agreement shall not exceed a term of three (3) years and shall be terminable by the Association for cause at a meeting of the members or upon thirty (30) days' written notice;
- (iii) To promulgate rules and regulations regarding conduct of Association business, behavior of members and guests, and use of the common elements;
- (iv) To prescribe the location of the principal office for the transaction of the business of the Association and to designate the place for the holding of any members' meeting;
- (v) To enforce the Articles, Declarations, Bylaws, Rules, and any other instruments affecting ownership, management, and control of the common elements, and to initiate and execute disciplinary proceedings against members for violation of the Articles, Declarations, Bylaws, or Rules in accordance with the "Discipline" section of these Bylaws;
- (vi) To pay any taxes, assessments, or charges that are or could become a lien on the common elements and to prepare and file any and all reports required by law;
- (vii) To provide for maintenance of the common elements including all structures; and
- (viii) To issue vouchers provided, however, that the issuance of any voucher shall occur only after approval of the voucher by a majority of the members of the Board.
- 3.1(b) <u>Discretionary Powers</u>. In addition to the foregoing mandatory duties, the Board shall have the power to:
- (i) Remove officers, agents, or employees of the Association, with or without cause;
- (ii) Change the location of the principal office of the Association within the county; and

- (iii) Appoint committees composed of members to assist it in its duties.
- 3.1(c) <u>Limitation of Powers</u>. The Board must obtain the approval of a majority of the members present at a duly-called meeting of the members for taking any of the following actions:
- (i) Entering into a contract with a third person for goods or services for a term greater than three (3) years, except a contract with a public utility for the shortest possible term and at rates regulated by the Oregon Public Utilities Commission, or a contract for prepaid casualty and/or liability insurance not to exceed two (2) years and which allows short rate cancellation by the insured;
- (ii) Compensating directors or officers other than reimbursements for expenses incurred in pursuing the business of the Association;
- (iii) Incurring aggregate capital expenditures during any fiscal year in excess of 5 percent of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for that year; or
- (iv) Selling property owned by the Association during any fiscal year having an aggregate fair-market value in excess of 5 percent of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for that year.
- 3.2 <u>Number</u>. There shall be not less than three (3) nor more than five (5) directors of the Association.
- 3.3 <u>Qualifications</u>. After turnover of control by the Declarant all directors must be or represent members of the Association.
- 3.4 <u>Election and Removal</u>. Directors shall be chosen, hold office, and be removed as follows:
- 3.4(a) <u>Election</u>. The Directors of the Association shall be appointed by the Declarant until turnover of control by the Declarant. Thereafter, all Directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of the members. If for any reason any such annual meeting is not held, or not all the authorized number of directors are elected there at, or it is necessary for the members to fill a vacancy on the Board, directors may be elected at any special meeting of the members held for that purpose.
- 3.4(b) <u>Nomination</u>. The Board shall prescribe reasonable procedures and opportunities for nomination of directors, communication by nominees with the members as to qualifications and reasons for candidacy and solicitation of votes, and for elections.
- 3.4(c) <u>Term of Office</u>. Terms of office for directors shall begin at the conclusion of the meeting at which directors are elected, and shall expire at the conclusion of the next succeeding meeting at which directors are voted upon, other than a special meeting to fill a vacancy on the Board.

## 3.4(d) Vacancies.

- (i) A vacancy or vacancies on the Board shall be deemed to exist in case of the death, resignation, or removal of any director, or if the authorized number of directors be increased, or if at any annual or special meeting of members at which any director or directors are to be elected, the members fail to elect the full authorized number of directors to be elected at that meeting, or if a vacancy is declared by the Board for any reason permitted by law; and
- (ii) Vacancies on the Board may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, or by the members; provided, however, that a vacancy on the Board created by the removal of a director can only be filled by the members. If the Board accepts the resignation of a director tendered to take effect at a future time, the Board or the members shall have power to elect a successor, pursuant to the provisions hereof, to take office when the resignation is to become effective. Each director so elected shall hold office for the remainder of the term of the position to which he or she was elected.
- 3.4(e) The Board may remove a director who has been declared of unsound mind by a final court order or convicted of a felony while in office. Removal for any other reason must be approved by a majority of the members present at a meeting called for that purpose. No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director prior to the expiration of his term of office.

## 3.5 Meetings.

- 3.5(a) <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Immediately following each annual meeting of members, the Board shall hold an annual regular meeting for the purpose of organization, election of officers, and the transaction of other business. The Board shall also hold a regular meeting approximately six (6) months from such annual meeting, and more often if deemed necessary.
- 3.5(b) <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Board may be held at any time, at a place designated by the Board in accordance with these Bylaws, upon call by the President, by any Vice President, by the Secretary, or by any two (2) directors.
- 3.5(c) Notice. Notice of the time and place of Board meetings, including notice of any special business to be considered, shall be given to each director at least ninety-six (96) hours prior to the meeting by personal delivery, telephone, mail, or other form of written communication, first-class postage or charges prepaid, addressed to him at his address as shown upon the records of the Association. Notice of Board meetings shall be posted in a prominent place in the registered office of the Association at least ninety-six (96) hours prior to the meeting. If the Board takes any action by unanimous written consent or at a meeting for which notice was not posted, other than action in executive sessions or disciplinary hearings, then an explanation of such action shall be posted in the registered office of the Association within three (3) days after such resolution is adopted.

- 3.5(d) <u>Attendance</u>. Directors may participate in any meeting, and shall be deemed present, through the use of conference or speaker telephone equipment, so long as all participants in the meeting can hear one another. Members shall be permitted to attend Board meetings, but may not participate in discussions or deliberations unless authorized by a majority of a quorum of the Board.
- 3.5(e) Consent of Absentees. Any defects in the call, notice, time or location of a meeting, shall not affect the validity of transactions at the meeting which are otherwise valid, if a quorum is present and if either before or after the meeting each of the directors not present signs a written approval of the minutes thereof. All such approvals shall be made a part of the minutes of the meeting. Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as requiring the consent of absentees to transactions at a properly called, noticed, and held meeting at which a quorum is present.
- 3.5(f) Quorum. A majority of the number of directors currently serving shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a meeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board unless a greater number be required by law or by the Articles or Declarations. A meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of a quorum or such greater number as may be required by law, the Articles, Bylaws, or Declarations.
- 3.5(g) <u>Adjournment</u>. A majority of the directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place; provided, however, that in the absence of a quorum a majority of the directors present at any directors' meeting, either regular or special, may adjourn from time to time until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board. Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting need not be given to absent directors if the time and place be fixed at the meeting adjourned.
- 3.6 <u>Action Without Meeting</u>. Any action required or permitted by the Board may be taken without a meeting if all the directors shall individually or collectively consent, in writing, to such action. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Board. Such written consent shall be filed with the Minutes of the proceedings of the Board.

#### 4. OFFICERS.

- 4.1 <u>Election/Term</u>. Each officer shall be elected by the Board and shall hold his office until he shall resign, shall be removed or otherwise disqualified to serve, or his successor shall be elected and take office, provided, however, that no officer shall serve more than three (3) years without being re-elected.
- 4.2 <u>Qualifications</u>. Officers, other than the President, need not be directors or members. One person may hold two (2) or more offices, except those of President and Secretary.

- 4.3 <u>Removal/Resignation</u>. Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by a majority of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. Removal or resignation shall not prejudice the rights of the Association or the officer under any contract of employment or the position on the Board of an officer who is also a director.
- 4.4 Offices. The Association shall have the following officers, and such other officers, including one (1) or more Assistant Secretaries, as may be appointed by the Board. The duties of officers shall be as prescribed in the Articles, Declarations, or Bylaws, or as assigned from time to time by the Board and, as to other officers, the President:
- 4.4(a) <u>President</u>. The President, who shall be chosen from the Board, shall be the chief executive officer of the Association and subject to the control of the Board, have general supervision, direction, and control of the business and officers of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors.
- 4.4(b) <u>Vice President</u>. In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice President shall perform all the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President.
- 4.4(c) <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept, at the principal office, or at such other place as the Board may order, a book of Minutes of all meetings of directors and members or a duplicate thereof, with the time and place of holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, the names of those present at directors' meetings, the number of memberships present or represented at members' meetings, and the proceedings thereof.

The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept in any form permitted by law, at the principal office or such other place as the Board may order, a membership register, or a duplicate thereof, showing the names of the members and their addresses, the description and number of units, if more than one, upon which such membership is based, the number and date of membership certificates issued, if any, and the number and date of cancellation of membership certificates surrendered for cancellation.

The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the members and of the Board required by these Bylaws or by law to be given, and shall keep the seal of the Association in safe custody.

4.4(d) <u>Chief Financial Officer</u>. The Chief Financial Officer shall keep and maintain or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the Association, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, or losses. The books of accounts shall at all time be open to inspection by any directors.

The Chief Financial Officer shall deposit all moneys and other valuables in the name of and to the credit of the Association with such depositories as may be designated by the Board, shall disburse the funds of the Association as may be ordered by the Board, and shall render to the President and directors, whenever they request it, an account of all of his transactions as Chief Financial Officer and of the financial condition of the Association.

# 5. ASSESSMENTS AND SPECIAL CHARGES

- 5.1 <u>Annual Assessment</u>. Each year the Board shall consider the current and future needs of the Association as to its operation, the operation and maintenance of the common elements, and any personal property maintained by the Association, including reasonable reserves for capital improvements and replacements, payment of taxes, and protecting and promoting the common interest of the members pursuant to the Articles, Declarations, Bylaws, and Rules, and, in light of such needs, determine the annual budget of the Association, and fix by resolution the amount of annual assessments to be levied against the members for the coming year. Assessments shall be charged to the members pro rata based on the square footage of the land owned by each member to total square feet of privately owned land shown on the filed subdivision plats of TimberMill Shores.
- 5.1(a) <u>Components</u>. The budget and annual assessments shall include the following elements:
  - (i) General Association administration and annual maintenance expenses; and
  - (ii) Reserves for capital improvements and replacements.
- 5.1(b) <u>Reserves</u>. The Association shall maintain reserve funds adequate to cover maintenance, repair, and replacement of the walkways, fixtures, and other common elements for which the Association is responsible, which are subject to major maintenance or repair or replacement on a periodic basis. Such reserves shall be funded from the payments of assessments, charges, and other income, and shall be segregated from the general operating assessments.
- 5.2 <u>Special Assessments</u>. Special assessments may be levied at any time upon determination by the Board that such assessments are necessary for capital improvements or major expenses, repairs or acquisitions for which no reserves have been established or for deficiencies in such reserves, or for any purposes related to the mutual health, safety, and welfare of the members pursuant to the Articles, Declarations, Bylaws, and Rules.
- 5.2(a) <u>Limitation</u>. No special assessments shall in the aggregate exceed 5 percent of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for the current fiscal year without the approval of the members.
- 5.2(b) Form of Levy. Special assessments shall be levied upon the same basis as annual assessments, except special charges levied against a particular member for reimbursement to the Association, for fines, or to bring individually-owned property into

compliance with provisions of the governing documents or architectural or design standards set by the Board.

- 5.3 <u>Statement</u>. The Secretary shall mail to each member, first-class postage prepaid, at such member's record address, a written statement of each annual or special assessment or special charges at least thirty (30) days prior to the date such assessment or charge shall become due and payable. Such statement shall set forth:
- (i) Amount of the installment or payment of assessments, fines, or charges due from that member;
  - (ii) Date such payment or installment is due;
  - (iii) Where and to whom payment is to be made; and
- (iv) Dates when late charges and interest begin to accrue and are payable, when membership rights will be suspended due to failure to pay such assessments.
- 5.4 <u>Payment</u>. Every such assessment shall be paid to the Association or its designated agent for collection in lawful money of the United States, on or before the date or period established by the Board pursuant to the resolution adopted by the Board fixing the amount of such assessment. Annual assessments may be paid in equal monthly installments.
- 5.5 <u>Late Charges/Costs</u>. Any assessment, special assessment, fine, or other charge not paid within thirty (30) days of its due date, shall be subject to the following: (a) a late charge in the amount of one hundred dollars (\$100) to compensate the Association generally for the added cost of collection, plus (b) interest at the rate of 1 percent per month on any such unpaid installment, which interest shall accrue from the day after the due date. A late charge may be imposed only once for a particular payment. A member shall also be liable to the Association for actual costs and attorney fees incurred in collecting assessments not paid within thirty (30) days of when due, including attorney's fees incurred on appeal.
- 5.6 <u>Suspensions</u>. The Association shall not transfer a membership on its books, or allow the exercise of any rights or privileges of membership on account thereof by any member or any person claiming under a member, unless and until all delinquent annual and special assessments, fines, or other charges to which such membership is subject are paid, provided the procedures of Bylaw 2.8 regarding "Discipline" have been followed.
- 5.7 <u>Lien/Foreclosure</u>. The Association shall have a lien against the land owned by a member for all assessments, special assessments, fines, and other charges levied against a member by the Association. The lien includes interest, late charges, attorney's fees, costs, or other amounts imposed by the Declarations and these Bylaws. The lien is prior to any homestead exemption and all other liens and encumbrances upon the land except county property tax liens. Recording of these Bylaws constitutes record notice and perfection of the said lien. No further recording of a claim of lien or notice of lien is required to perfect the Association's lien.

Prior to foreclosing its lien, the Association shall record a Notice of Lien in the Deed Records of Klamath County, Oregon containing the following information:

- (i) A true statement of the amount due for the unpaid assessments after deducting all just credits and offsets;
  - (ii) The name of the owner of the lot, or reputed owner, if known;
  - (iii) The name of the association;
  - (iv) The description of the lot as provided in ORS 93.600; and
- (v) A statement that if the owner of the lot thereafter fails to pay any assessments when due, as long as the original or any subsequent unpaid assessment remains unpaid, the unpaid amount of assessments automatically continues to accumulate with interest without the necessity of further recording.

The lien may be enforced by the Board of Directors acting on behalf of the Association. The proceedings to foreclose liens created by this section shall conform as nearly as possible to the proceedings to foreclose liens created by ORS 87.010 except, notwithstanding ORS 87.055, a lien may be continued in force for a period of time not to exceed six years from the date the assessment is due. For the purpose of determining the date the assessment is due on those cases when subsequent unpaid assessments have accumulated under a notice recorded as provided in subsection (2) of this section, the assessment and claim regarding each unpaid assessment shall be deemed to have been levied at the time the unpaid assessment became due. In any suit to foreclose its lien, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees therein and on any appeal therefrom.

- 5.8 <u>Disposition of Funds</u>. The funds arising from assessments, insofar as possible, shall be applied toward the payment of expenses pursuant to the annual budget adopted by the Board. Excess assessments, after making allowance for budgeted reserves for replacement, may be returned to the members on an equitable basis or held in trust for budgeted needs.
- 5.9 Statement of Charges. The Board, on not less than twenty (20) days prior written request, shall execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the party making such request, a written statement whether or not to the knowledge of the Association, a particular owner is in default as to his assessments, and disclosing the amount of delinquent assessments, late charges, attorney's fees, and other penalties assessed against such owner's unit, and further stating the dates to which installments of assessments, regular or special, have been paid as to his unit. Any such certificate may be relied on by any prospective purchaser or mortgagee of the unit but reliance on such certificate may not extend to any default not involving the payment of assessments of which the signer had no actual knowledge. The Association may charge a fee reasonably related to the cost of preparing such statement.
- 6. RECORDS AND REPORTS
  - 6.1 Inspections.

- 6.1(a) Members. The Articles, Bylaws, Declarations, Rules, membership register or duplicate membership register, the books of account and Minutes of proceedings of the members, the Board and any committees, shall be made available for inspection and copying, upon written demand and reasonable notice, by any member or its duly appointed representative, at any reasonable time and for a purpose reasonably related to its interests as a member. An original or copy of the Declarations, Articles, and Bylaws, as amended to date, shall be kept at the principal office of the Association and shall be open to inspection by the members at all reasonable times during office hours.
- 6.1(b) <u>Directors</u>. Each director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records, and physical properties owned or controlled by the Association, and to make copies and extracts thereof.
- 6.1(c) <u>Rules</u>. The Board shall establish reasonable rules regarding notice to be given the custodian of the records by a member desiring to make an inspection, times at which records are available, and payment of costs of reproduction.
- 6.2 <u>Accountings and Reports</u>. The Board shall cause to be prepared and distributed to the members the following:
- 6.2(a) <u>Budget</u>. A pro forma operating budget, distributed not less than forty-five (45) days before the beginning of each fiscal year, containing the following:
  - (i) Estimated revenue and expenses on an accrual basis;
- (ii) The amount of the total cash reserves of the Association currently available for replacement or major repair of the common element facilities and for contingencies;
- (iii) An itemized estimate of the remaining life of, and the methods of funding to defray repair, replacement, or additions to major components of the common elements and facilities for which the Association is responsible; and
- (iv) A general statement setting forth the procedures used by the Board in the calculation and establishment of reserves to defray the costs of repair, replacement, or additions to major components of the common elements and facilities for which the Association is responsible.
- 6.2(b) Annual Report. Thereafter, within ninety (90) days after the last day of the Association's fiscal year, an annual report containing the following:
  - (i) A balance sheet as of the last day of the fiscal year;
  - (ii) An operating (income) statement for the fiscal year;
  - (iii) A statement of changes in financial position for the fiscal year;

- (iv) A statement of where the names and addresses of current members are located;
- (v) A description of any transaction or series of transactions by the Association in which a director, officer, or holder of 10 percent or more of the voting power had a direct or indirect financial interest;
- (vi) A description of any indemnification or advances aggregating more than \$10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any officer or director of the Association; and
- (vii) If not prepared by an independent accountant, a certificate by an authorized officer that the annual report was prepared from the books and records of the Association without independent audit or review.
- 6.2(c) Enforcement Policies. Within 60 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, a statement of the Association's policies and practices in enforcing its remedies against members for defaults in the payment of regular and special assessments, including the recording and foreclosing of liens against units, shall be available for inspection at the office of the Association.

#### 7. INSURANCE

7.1 Generally. Where practicable, insurance policies shall be blanket policies covering the common element properties, any properties owned or administered by the Association, activities of the Association and its employees and agents, and any property or activities of Declarant, in which case the Association and Declarant shall each pay their proportionate share of the premium. With respect to insurance proceeds paid in connection with a loss of Association property only, the Board shall be deemed trustee of the interests of all members in any insurance proceeds paid to it under any such policies, and shall have full power to receive and to receipt for their interest in such proceeds and to deal therewith as set forth in the Declarations and Bylaws. The limits and coverage should be reviewed at least every two (2) years.

Every policy of insurance obtained by the Association shall contain (a) an express waiver, if available, of any and all rights of subrogation against Declarant, Declarant's agents and representatives, any person, firm or corporation affiliated with Declarant in the development of the condominiums, the Board, and individual members of the Board, and individual owners and members of the Association; (b) a severability of interest endorsement, as applicable; and (c) a cross-liability endorsement, as applicable.

- 7.2 <u>Policies</u>. The Board shall obtain and maintain in force the following policies of insurance:
- (i) Fire and extended coverage insurance on all personal property, structures, and improvements, insuring 100 percent of the aggregate full insurable value, meaning actual replacement value, exclusive of the cost of land, excavations, foundations, and footings from an insurance carrier designated Class A or better in Best's Key Rating Guide, or any successor or similar guide. Such insurance shall insure the Association, shall contain a

deductible clause of no more than \$1,000, shall contain an inflation guard endorsement, and shall insure against loss or damage by fire, theft, and other hazards covered by the standard extended coverage endorsement, and by sprinkler leakage, debris removal, cost of demolition, vandalism, malicious mischief, windstorm, water damage, and other risks customarily insured against in similar projects;

- (ii) Public liability insurance, with limits of not less than \$500,000 per person, \$1 million per occurrence, and a deductible of not more than \$1,500 insuring against liability for bodily injury, death, and property damage, including water damage, arising from the activities of the Association or with respect to property under its jurisdiction or used for its benefit or business, such as nonowned and hired automobiles, and for such other risks as are customarily covered in similar projects. Liability insurance shall name as separately protected insureds the Declarant, the Association, the Board, and their representatives, members, and employees with respect to any liability arising out of the maintenance or use of any Common Element or Association property;
- (iii) Workers' compensation insurance to the extent necessary to comply with any applicable law; and
- (iv) Such other insurance, including indemnity and other bonds, as the Board shall deem necessary or expedient to carry out the Association's functions as set forth in the Declarations, Articles, and Bylaws.

#### 8. GENERAL BYLAWS

- 8.1 <u>Principal Office</u>. The principal office of the Association shall be in Klamath County, Oregon at 404 South Fourth Street, Post Office Box 257, Klamath Falls, Oregon 97601, or at such specific location therein as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors.
- 8.2 <u>Liability of Agents</u>. No director, officer, employee, agent, or representative (collectively "agent") of the Association shall be personally liable in any action or proceeding to any owner, person, or the Association for any damage, loss or prejudice suffered or claimed on account of any act, negligence, error, or omission of the Association, the Board, or any agent of the Association or any committee, provided that such agent has acted in good faith and without willful or intentional misconduct upon the basis of such information as may be possessed by him or available to him upon reasonable inquiry.
- 8.3 <u>Indemnification</u>. If any action or proceeding is brought against any agent because such person is or was an agent of the Association, then upon approval of (a) a majority of a quorum of directors who are not parties to such proceeding; (b) the members, excluding those who are parties to such action; or (c) the court in which such action is or was pending, the Association shall indemnify such person against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such proceeding or action, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Association and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the conduct of such person was unlawful. The termination of any proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent shall

not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which the person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the Association or that the person had reasonable cause to believe that the person's conduct was unlawful. If the Association is required to incur any cost or expense hereunder, the Association shall be entitled to levy a special assessment for the amount so expended.

8.4 <u>Amendments</u>. New Bylaws may be adopted, or these Bylaws may be amended or repealed, only by the affirmative vote or written assent of 50 percent of the members of the Association. Any unit owner may propose an amendment to the Bylaws by providing the written text of the proposed amendment to each owner in the manner provided for giving notice of membership meetings to unit owners, not less than five (5) days prior to any annual membership meeting.

Adopted this 12 day of June, 2006.

TIMBERMILL SHORES PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION

By:

Robert J. Shaw, President

STATE OF OREGON, County of Klamath) ss.

۳۰رچر

December

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the <u>27</u> of August, 2006 by Robert J. Shaw, in his capacity as President of TimberMill Shores Property Owners Association.

OFFICIAL SEAL
PATRICIA G. PALONE
NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON
COMMISSION NO. 394918
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JUL 14, 2009

Yatricia & Yalone Notary Public for Oregon

My Commission Expires: 7-14-09